ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 13, 2004
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to issuance of a driver's |license."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 304
"An Act nam ng the Jack Coghill Bridge to the Interior."

- MOVED HB 304 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 319
"An Act relating to the disposal of state land by lottery; and
relating to the disposal, including sale or |ease, of renote
recreational cabin sites.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 3
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 221

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 13, 2004



"An Act making it a class C felony to knowingly neke a false
statenent relating to citizenship or residency on an application
for voter registration or reregistration.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 241
"An Act relating to optional exenptions from municipal property
taxes on residential property.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 297
"An Act relating to wildfires and other natural disasters.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 329

"An Act relating to retirenment incentive prograns for the public
enpl oyees' retirenment system the judicial retirenent system
and the teachers' retirement system relating to separation
incentives for certain state enployees; and providing for an
effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 40

SHORT TI TLE: REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE
SPONSCOR('S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) LYNN

01/21/03 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/21/03 (H) TRA, STA

04/ 10/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 10/ 03 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

04/ 15/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 15/ 03 (H Heard & Held

04/ 15/ 03 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 24/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 24/ 03 (H Moved CSHB 40( TRA) CQut of Committee
04/ 24/ 03 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 25/ 03 (H TRA RPT CS(TRA) NT 2DP 3NR

04/ 25/ 03 (H DP: FATE, MASEK; NR OG5 KOHRI NG
04/ 25/ 03 (H HOLM

05/ 07/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 13, 2004



05/ 07/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d

05/ 07/ 03 (H) M NUTE( STA)

05/ 14/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/ 14/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
05/ 15/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/ 15/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
01/ 13/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 304
SHORT TI TLE: JACK COGHI LL BRI DGE TO THE | NTERI OR
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) COGHI LL

05/ 07/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

05/ 07/ 03 (H TRA, STA

05/ 12/ 03 (H) TRA AT 5:30 PM CAPI TOL 102

05/ 12/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

05/ 12/ 03 (H M NUTE( TRA)

05/ 13/ 03 (H) TRA RPT 5DP

05/ 13/ 03 (H DP: FATE, OGG KOHRI NG MASEK, HOLM
01/ 13/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 319

SHORT TITLE: REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) FATE

05/ 14/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
05/ 14/ 03 (H STA, RES, FIN

01/ 13/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HIR 3

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM PERVANENT FUND
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) CRAWORD, CROFT

01/ 21/ 03 (H PREFI LE RELEASED ( 1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 03 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 07/ 03 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
02/ 07/ 03 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 07/ 03 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

01/ 13/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

DUANE BANNCCK, Director

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
Department of Adm nistration (DOA)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 13, 2004



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the DW
during the hearing on HB 40.

ELLEN KRSNAK

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Catholic Social
Services (CSS) in opposition to HB 304.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 310 on behalf of
Representati ve Fate, sponsor

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as Co-sponsor of HIR 3.

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C CROFT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as Co-sponsor of HIR 3.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-01, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Lynn, Coghill, Berkowitz, and Wyhrauch were present at
the call to order. Representative Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeting was i n progress.

HB 40- REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE

Number 0200

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 40, "An Act relating to issuance of a driver's
i cense.”

Number 0380

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN explained that HB 40 would mnmandate that
Al aska may not issue an Alaska driver's license to "anyone who
is not legally ©present in the United States and, as a
consequence, not legally present in Al aska."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that [having] a driver's license is a
privilege, rather than a right. A state has a right to nmandate

its own standards and qualifications for a driver's |license,
such as a satisfactory score on a witten test and [passing] a
driving test. The proposed legislation would nerely add an

additional qualification that an alien nmust be legally in the
United States to obtain an Al aska driver's license. Not hing in
[HB 40], he enphasized, would act against the rights and
privileges of any legal alien in Al aska. He clarified that HB
40 would permt aliens with a residence in Alaska to obtain a
driver's license if they are in possession of a valid green
card, are [in Alaska] with an unexpired visa, or are here
|l egally wunder President Bush's newy proposed legislation on
foreign nationals residing in the United States.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noted that state residency is a |egal
requi renent for anyone to get an Al aska driver's license. He
stated that it is obvious that illegal aliens cannot be |egal
residents of any state, including Al aska. If Al aska know ngly
or unknowi ngly provides illegal aliens with driver's |icenses,
the state enables false appearance of legal residence to an
illegal alien who is by definition ineligible for a license and,
by definition, [is] a |awbreaker. Representative Lynn asked his
fellow commttee nmenbers not to fall prey to the politically
correct euphemism of calling illegal aliens "undocunented
wor kers. " He added, "Sugar-coated words don't change reality.
Sonmeone is either legally present in the United States, or
they're not."

Number 0560

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN stated that, as the law is currently
structured and interpreted, it is the job of the federal
gover nnment to enforce nat i onal i mm gration | aws.

Notw t hstanding that, he added that it is well wthin the
purview of the State of Alaska to determ ne who does and does
not qualify for driver's |licenses.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said honel and security is a top priority of
the President of the United States. He stated his belief that
it [is also a top priority] of the governor of Al aska and al

those in the Alaska State Legislature. He said, "W live in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 13, 2004



very dangerous tinmes, and we believe that HB 40 will help |essen

sonme of those dangers.” He stated that a driver's license is an
essential tool that can be used by illegal aliens to "solidify
their presence here and nove about freely.”" He added, "This is

a clear threat to our safety and economic security.”
Representative Lynn stated that Alaska nust not becone a
| oophol e for terrorists. He illustrated, "To be blunt, we need
to fix it so GCsama bin Laden can't get an Alaska driver's
| i cense. ™ He said, "W want Alaska to be a state of security,
not a state of insecurity." Representative Lynn indicated there
was a letter of support from the Al aska assistant comm ssioner
of honmeland security [included in the commttee packet] that
reads in part, "Your proposed House Bill No. 40 would provide an
additional tool to inprove the security of Al aska."”™ He remarked
that it is a sobering thought that nost of the 19 hijackers of
[the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001] carried driver's
licenses fromVirginia, Florida, or New Jersey.

Number 0692

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that HB 40 would help prevent voter
fraud. He said, "An illegal alien with an Al aska driver's
license would facilitate non citizens of Alaska to register to
vote under the Mdtor Voter Act [the National Voter Registration
Act of 1993]." Favorabl e action on HB 40, he said, wll help
protect the integrity of Alaska voter rolls.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN turned to the subject of identity theft,
which he said is becomng an increasing problem The proposed
| egislation would help address the many dangers of identity
theft. He said that state-issued driver's |licenses have becone
the de facto primary identity docunent in the United States. In
fact, he added, driver's licenses are so generally requested for
pur poses unrelated to driving that t he not or vehi cl e
adm nistration also issues identity cards for non-drivers.

[Due to technical difficulty, a new tape starts here. The
commttee took an at-ease from8:09 a.m to 8:17 a.m|]

TAPE 04-02, SIDE A
8:17 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed commttee

substitute (CS), Version 23-LS0262\H, as a work draft. There
bei ng no objection, Version H was before the commttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN described driver's licenses as "breeder
docunents” that provide access to many other docunents that

facilitate identity theft. Driver's licenses [are used as a
form of identification] by law enforcers, retailers, |ending
institutions, and [airport security and personnel]. Currently,
he noted, once a person gets a driver's license or state
identification card in one state, that card can be used in any
ot her state. Furthernore, that card can be exchanged for

another state's license or identity card. A license exchange is
faster and requires nuch |ess docunentation than a newy issued
card, which Representative Lynn said he thinks is scary. He
posited that every constituent is a potential victimof identity
theft, and HB 40 is "one step toward protecting our good nanes
and our good credit."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that, in a newspaper article regarding
HB 40, soneone clainmed that illegal aliens wll be driving
whet her they are licensed or not, and a license would nmake them
safer drivers, because they would have to pass a driving test.
He asked, "Should we then issue licenses to 10-year olds, or
sone other obviously unsuitable group, nerely because sone of
them will be driving anyway? Should we |legalize marijuana,
because maybe sonebody w Il be snoking pot anyway? | think
not . " The aforenentioned person also clainmed that the federa

government has sole authority over inmgration, which applies to
whom a state chooses to license as a driver. Conver sel vy,
Representative Lynn enphasized that the bill has nothing to do
with immgration, but "has only to do with who's eligible for a
driver's license, period." He remarked that the federa

government has intruded a lot into independent states' rights,

but hopefully Al aska can still decide who gets his/her drivers

| i cense and who does not.

8:20 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger
disallowed driver's licenses for illegal aliens in California.
He said he believes that as of April 2003, 30 states plus
Washington, D.C. required a legal presence to obtain a driver's
|icense. He said that he thinks nore states have followed suit,
and he hopes that Alaska will join that |ist.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated the following for the record:
| believe from the bottom of ny heart that 99.9

percent of all the illegal aliens who cone to Al aska -
or anywhere else in the United States - ... cone to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 13, 2004



Alaska to work, ... to better their lives, and they're
decent human beings who broke immgration law in the
popul ar theory that the end sonehow justifies the
means. Honestly, who anong us here has not at one
time or another in our lives used that theory that the
end justifies the neans.

| do believe in welcomng the stranger anong us.
Every one ... of our ancestors was a stranger in a
strange land at one tinme or another. | believe there
should be no unjust restriction of the natural right
of individual persons to nove freely, within their own
nation, or from one nation to another, so long as
reasonable rules are followed. In other words, when
you're under Caesar, what is Caesar's, when you're
under God, what is Cod's.

| also believe that the State of Alaska has a right to
render the qualifications for driver's licenses, and
[becomng] a legal resident of the United States
shoul d be one of those qualifications rendered.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN summari zed his previously stated points. He
reenphasi zed that nothing in HB 40 would act against the rights
of any legal alien in Al aska. He asked his fellow conmmttee
menbers for a favorable vote on HB 40.

8:22 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how many people would be effected
by HB 40.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered that it would effect everyone in

Al aska, and he gave exanples. In response to a followup
question by Representative Berkowitz and clarification by Chair
Weyhrauch, he said he does not know how many illegal aliens

there are in Alaska and he ventures that no one else knows
ei ther.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said that Representative Lynn talked
about the need for an honest voter roll, and he asked himin how
many i nstances he has been able to discover that inmgrants have
vot ed i nproperly.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered that he doesn't know how many

peopl e have voted illegally, and he stated that he suspects that
none of the other 59 nmenbers of the |legislature do either.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ sai d:

The point is that you asserted sonething as a fact to
this commttee. You're presenting information. And |
just wanted to know what the fact was, and if you're
unable to tell wus, you're, in essence, saying Yyou
don't know.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he does not know how many ill egal
aliens there are in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that Representative Lynn had

previously referenced what had gone on in California. He said
he had the California bill in front of him He told
Representative Lynn, "The immgrants that you would sweep up
with your proposed piece of legislation is a far broader
category then is swept up in the California legislation." He

noted that there is a list of a dozen types of immgrants that
may not have achieved green card [status] that are acceptable
under the California |aw He asked if Representative Lynn was
awar e of that.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that he does not think that the term
"swept up" is appropriate. He said that this is not an
immgration raid, but rather proposed |egislation establishing
qualifications for driver's |licenses.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that HB 40 would include anyone
who is not a citizen of the United States or is not an alien

lawfully admtted into the United States. The California
| egislation is far nore specific, citing a nunber of different
categories, including petitions for alien relatives, inmmgrant
petitions for alien workers, immgrant petitions by alien
entrepreneurs, applications for asylum and applications to
adj ust status from tenporary to permanent residence. He asked

Representative Lynn if he had | ooked at the California bill.
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answer ed no.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked Representative Lynn if there is a
classification of an alien comng into the country who is
awaiting legal status, who would be categorized as an illegal

alien until that |legal status had been obtained. He illustrated
this idea by noting that there are a great nunber of people from
Tonga or the Philippines who have relatives and friends in
Al aska, and who want to work in fish processing, for exanple.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 13, 2004



He stated, "They're here innocently, but they're also here
because they love Anerica, they want to work hard, they want a
job, they want to be unfettered by the constraints in their own
country where they don't have the opportunity we have here.” He
asked if those people would fall into a status of being illega
and not being able to get a driver's license, and if they would
be stigmati zed by the proposed | egislation.

8:27 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered, "You're either here legally or
you're not here legally." He opined that if a person was here
| egally, there wouldn't be a problem For exanple, he offered,
many aliens are in the United States and have "a perfect right
to be here.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Representative Lynn if he would
consider soneone who has conme into the United States and
[submtted] an asylum petition as being lawfully or unlawfully
adm tted.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered that he thinks as long as the
person had gone through the paperwork [he would be legally in
the country].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWTZ clarified that the person in his
exanple would not have gone through the paperwork, but would
only just have submtted the petition.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN offered his belief that a petition is
paper wor k.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ clarified as foll ows:

My question is: Soneone escapes sone kind of tyranny
- they've fought, for exanple, for the United States

in a foreign |and. They conme over ... Anerica's
borders wi thout proper docunentation. Then they're in
the United States - they nmake an asylum application.

Wuld vyou consider that they have been Ilawfully
admtted into the United States, or not?

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded, "If they have executed the

paperwork that's required by the United States, or whoever is
responsi ble for that, that would not be a problem to ne."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Representative Lynn if he thinks
the people at the DW would know all the ways that people have
been or could be admtted into the United States, and if he
feels that subsequent training m ght be necessary, in order for
them to understand the full range of ways that people can gain
| awf ul adm ssions into the country after those people have cone
in to the country, perhaps w thout docunentation.

8:29 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN surm sed that if any education is required,
it should probably be provided; however, he noted that that
[question] is not in his area of expertise and suggested that
the representative available fromthe DW would be better suited
to answer that question.

8:30 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the proposed legislation would
make it unlawful to issue a driver's license to anybody who is
not a citizen of the United States.

8:32 a.m
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that, under HB 40, a person
who is an alien legally admtted into the United States could

[be issued a driver's |icense].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned a case in which a man from

North Korea, nanmed Daiil Park, found his way over the border
into South Korea, went to Alaska, attended |aw school, and
passed the bar. However, the bar refused to admt him because

he did not have the necessary paperwork, "since he was in the
United States getting political asylum and had nothing from

North Korea." Representative Gruenberg told the commttee the
man's case was taken to the [Al aska] Suprene Court. That body
said the case was unconstitutional. Representati ve G uenberg

said that the nman had a distinguished career and died recently.
He added that he thinks this case should be |ooked at to be
certain that the sane problem does not surface regarding the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ stated that his focus is on who is not
a citizen of the United States. He asked Representative Lynn
what docunents prove Anerican Citizenship.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN suggested a passport.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what people would do who don't
have a passport.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN answered [they could use] a birth
certificate.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how a person who doesn't have a
birth certificate or an American citizen who is born abroad
woul d show [ proof of citizenship].

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN suggested that those questions be deferred
to the DW.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that HB 40 is Representative
Lynn's bill, and he opined that it could pose a hardship on a
great nunber of Anmerican citizens. He expl ained that he just
wants to know if Representative Lynn has done any research into
that particular aspect of proof of citizenship.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded that HB 40 is a sinple bill. He
told Representative Berkowitz that he thinks he is "playing
ganmes here, trying to obfuscate the sinplicity of the bill." He
explained that the sinplicity of the bill is that a person needs
to be an American citizen or be legally admtted to the United
States [in order to legally hold a driver's Ilicense or
identification]. He added that whatever qualifications there

are for American citizenship, or to legally remain in the United
States, would certainly apply [to this bill].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ told Representative Lynn that it is
i nappropriate for him to apply any notive to his [questions].
He remarked that [the proposed l|legislation] mght be sinple in
| anguage, but it could be conplex in execution. He continued as
fol | ows:

That's why, when | asked about how vyou prove
citizenship of the United States, it's an inportant
i ssue, because sonebody's going to be able to go into
the DW one day and get a driver's license, and | want
to know what requirenments are in front of them I

want to know what Al askans will have to do - people
who are born in the state, perhaps never left the
state - what they're going to have to do to show

citizenship. And if you can't answer that, that can
i npose a serious hardship on people who are lawfully

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 13, 2004



here, who happen to be Anmerican citizens, but sonehow
are caught up in the requirenents of this bill

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said his "own theory" is that he would use
his birth certificate, his passport, and perhaps his mlitary
identification [as proof of citizenship]. He acknow edged a
poi nt made by Representative Berkowitz that a person could be a
non-citizen and be a nenber of the mlitary.

8:38 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked how the provision regarding
preventing illegal aliens from getting driver's licenses would
prevent identity theft.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN repeated that a driver's license is a
breeder document. He opined that it is used nore than it should
be as a de facto national identification card. He gave an
exanpl e of a people being asked to show their driver's licenses
upon trying to cash checks. He said, "If you aren't who you say
you are -- your driver's license is what is used to establish
identity for all of us.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he is trying to figure out
how sonebody getting a driver's license as identification would
cause identity theft. He said, "I nean, we've identified that
person as that person, not as soneone else." He asked
Representative Lynn if he understood his quandary.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered, "Not totally, sir.” He explained
that if a person has a driver's license, he/she can do anything
with it, for exanple, board airplanes.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rephrased his question as foll ows:

| think the postulate here is, sonehow, nme getting the
driver's license through DW allows nme to steal your
identity. And | don't understand how that works. I
don't understand how me getting a driver's license ..
with ny picture on it and everything else, then
putting nme in the state system..

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN i nterjected the foll ow ng:

You have an illegal person getting a |license when they
should not get a license. They're | aw breakers from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 13, 2004



the get-go, and they have this license. Now t hey can
do anything they want to with it.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he understands sone of where
Representative Lynn is comng from He said that a docunent he
has would identify him as hinself; it wouldn't give him an
avenue to steal [Representative Lynn's] identity, for exanple.
He stated his concern that [HB 40] not be "casting a w der net”
than is actually [ needed].

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that a license procured in [Al aska]
coul d be exchanged in another state.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how exchanging his Al aska driver's
license for a Wshington license would be stealing soneone
el se's identity. He said he understands that identity theft is
a real problem however, he said he doesn't understand how
having a driver's license issued with his picture on it steals
anot her person's identity.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he is not certain how to respond to

t hat . He said, "Either you're the person you say you are, or
you're not. You ... should be a |legal person to get a |egal
driver's license. |It's beyond nme how to respond specifically to

your question.”

8:42 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Representative Lynn if he 1is
aware that there are already crimnal penalties for putting
false information on a driver's |license application.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there is a higher incidence of
immgrants using false nanes than non-inmgrants using false
names.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d he does not know.
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "So, what's the basis for your
conclusion that identity theft is a problem as a result of

driver's license applications fromimm grants?"

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 13, 2004



If you have a false docunent to begin with - if it's
based upon being in this country - you shouldn't be in
the country to begin wth. That's a whole other
i ssue.

But if you are in this country, you should be here
| egal ly. And [if] you get a driver's |icense, you
need to be the person that you say you are. You
shoul d be here under the laws of this country. And if
you can't abide by laws (indisc.) to Alaska, | don't
know how you expect to abide by any driving |laws, or
anyt hi ng el se.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ told Representative Lynn that he had
just inputed illegality to soneone who has cone over [to the
United States] wthout docunentation. He explained that
Representative Lynn had said that those fol ks who cone into [the
United States] w thout proper docunentation are nore inclined
towards identity theft and a whole host of other crimes that
involve falsification of information on driver's |icense
applications.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN rebutted that he does not believe that he
had said that any person who conmes to this country legally or
illegally is nore inclined toward being a bad person.
Furthernore, he recalled that he had said that 99.9 percent of
[inmigrants] are good, hard-working people who cane [to the
United States] wunder the theory that the end justifies the
neans. He added, "Sonme of these people are not good people.”
He expl ai ned that sonme people conme to weak terror on the United
States; however, those people do not mnmake up the mgjority.
Representative Lynn pointed out that |laws are usually not nade
for the majority, but rather "for the exception.” He |isted
| aws agai nst nurder and rape, for exanple.

8:45 a. m

CHAI R  WEYHRAUCH, regarding a comment previously made by
Representative Lynn that illegal aliens are |aw breakers, said
he thinks that many people are in [the United States] because of
terrorism in their own countries, and they are in the states
because of the freedom that is available here. He mentioned
[the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001] and said he
t hought that the terrorismevents is "what's lurking here."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that is one of the [issues] that he had
nent i oned.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 13, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH offered his understanding that the terrorists
involved in those attacks were all in the United States |egally.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted, "Sone of these people had driver's
| i censes when they should not have had driver's licenses. Some
of [then] were here, | believe, ... under expired visas."

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH added, "Sonme were actually issued visas after
they were dead."”

8:46 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if it was Representative Lynn's
intent that anyone applying for driver's licenses would bring a
birth certificate in, while anyone who is not a naturalized
citizen would bring in whatever immgration papers necessary to
t he DW.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN stated that his intent is that the DW
establish what it needs to issue or not issue a license, "which
could include the various things that you nmention."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said, "I was just wondering, in your
research, if that was how you | anded on it."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his understanding that the DW has
al ready nmade sone changes. He specified that [the docunments
that could be required by the DW in order to issue a license]
woul d i nclude that which would show that a person is who he/she
clains to be and is in the country legally. He offered the
exanpl e of his Canadian son-in-law who holds a green card and a
California driver's |icense.

8:47 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG returned to the previously nentioned
subj ect regarding the man from Korea and told the commttee that
the name of the case is Application of Park. He handed out
copies of it [available in the commttee packet]. He quoted a
line from the case, which read, "There are better tests than
al i enage to determ ne these matters.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that the ability to get an
identification card and the ability to drive are fundanental to
earning a livelihood, being nobile, raising a famly, attending
school, and receiving nedical care.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it seenms to him that the argunent

that Representative Lynn is making is that "these people” in
sone manner are potentially a threat. He stated, "In sone ways,
what Representative Seaton was saying troubles ne also.” He

said a person's having a green card is in sone cases a
relationship to whether that person is a threat, but in other
cases is of little relationship [to that possibility]. He
opi ned that a person can be nuch nore of a threat if convicted
of heinous driving offenses, for exanple, than by com ng over
the border illegally or not being able to get a [green] card

He said he would like to see sone way of dealing with the issue
of the threat by "looking at sonething that has a little nore
direct ... evidence of the fact of whether they're a threat, if
that's the basis of this bill." He asked Representative Lynn if
he was m sreading his intent.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN questi oned whether there can be a conparison
between getting a license to practice law and getting one to
drive a vehicle. He added, "You know, apples and apples here."

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG in response to a question by
Representative Lynn, noted that the citation of the Parks case
took place in 1971.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he doesn't want to nmake comments about
[ Al aska's] court system however, he added, "Suffice it to say
that all of their decisions have not been w se."

8:50 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Lynn if, under HB 40,
peopl e woul d have to show proof of citizenship before exchanging
[one state's driver's license for another]. He clarified that
he is not concerned about illegal aliens in this question, but
wants to know how the bill would effect every person who goes
into the DW to exchange a driver's license. He continued as
fol | ows:

Every one of us is going to have to prove this, not
just the aliens - every one of us that goes in. And
so, we have a person that conmes up here that has a
driver's license, but it's not from a state that
requires proof of citizenship; therefore, under your
bill, as | understand it, he can't exchange his
driver's license and get an Al aska driver's |icense.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded that he thinks anybody who cones
"up here" for a driver's license should be able to show that
they are either a United States citizen or are here as a |lega
al i en.

8:52 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked how reciprocity would work if the
requirenents in California are different than those in Al aska,
for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered that sone people have recomrended
agai nst reciprocity "for those very reasons.™

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM pointed out that Representative Lynn had
previously nentioned that several perpetrators of [the terrorist
attacks of Septenber 11, 2001] held legal driver's licenses. He
said because of that they also had legal (indisc.). He
reconmended that the issue of reciprocity be addressed.

8:53 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Section 2 of the bill also
addresses the renewal of |icenses. He said, for exanple, that
under HB 40, a person who has lived in the Al aska Bush for many
years and already has a driver's license, but for sonme reason
doesn't have a birth certificate or other proof of citizenship
woul d not be able to renew his/her |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he supposes that person would have an
original application on file with the DW.

TAPE 04-02, SIDE B
8:56 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks that [the original
application] would not be enough, because under HB 40, the
person would have to prove that he/she is a citizen or has a
green card [in order to renew a driver's license]. In response
to a comment by Representative Lynn, Representative G uenberg
pointed to page 1, line 10, which reads "nor renew', which he
explained is where the bill stipulates this requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, in response to a question by Representative

Coghill, reiterated that, as of April 2003, 30 states have
"essentially the same bill."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL asked if Representative Lynn has
researched how those states have addressed the proof of identity
i ssue.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN stated that he believes there may be
information in the commttee packet regarding that; however, he
told Representative Coghill that he is not prepared to answer
that question directly.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that [the issue of proof of
identity upon renewal of a driver's license] is an issue that
the commttee should address before noving the bill. He al so
commented that the expiration dates of |icenses or green cards
may not exactly be in synch, and he said he would be interested
to see how the other states worked out that problem

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that sone students in the United
States are here with a student visa, and the expiration of their
driver's licenses extend beyond the visa period. He stated that

this is a potential problem He said he had contenpl ated
putting "that" in the bill; however, he did not want to put too
much into the sane bill. He conceded that that m ght have been

an error on his part.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that this may be a subject for
an anmendnent to the bill

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said, "If we were to anend it along that
line, it would be a friendly anendnent as far as |I'm concerned.”

8:58 a. m

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH suggested to Representative Guenberg that it
may be worthwhile to ask Legislative Legal and Research Services
to address the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opi ned that HB 40 should be referred to
t he House Judiciary Standing Committee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that an Alaska driver's |license
currently does not prove citizenship; therefore, according to
the bill's stipulations for renewal, every person in A aska wll
have to go down to the DW to prove United States citizenship
before being allowed to renew a current Al aska driver's |icense
[or identity card].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE LYNN opined that security and safety would
probably increase if that were done.

8:59 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked, "If you could show proof that
you're a citizen by showing you were born in the US., why
couldn't people just forge a birth certificate?”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN suggested that may be an issue for another
bill.

9:00 a.m

DUANE BANNOCK, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration (DOA), told the committee that he
was available to answer questions regarding HB 40. In response
to a question by Chair Wyhrauch regarding the recent dynam c of
the DW offices, he informed the commttee that the DW closed a
total of two offices - one in Anchorage and one in Juneau - and
reassi gned the schedul ed operating hours of several very snall
offices into less hours, but including evenings and weekends to
allow for greater accessibility.

MR. BANNOCK stated that the DW supported the bill |ast year and
w Il support it again [currently].

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH pointed to two fiscal notes in the commttee
packet - one by the Departnent of Law and one by the Departnent
of Adm nistration.

MR, BANNOCK confirmed that he prepared the [Departnent of
Adm ni stration's] fiscal not e, which reflects Version H,
currently before the conmttee.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that according to the testinony that has
been heard on the bill, there are a couple of things that would
af fect the DW. First, he noted, the DW would establish what
it needs to issue a license. He asked M. Bannock if his fiscal
note anticipates the promulgation of regulations to establish
what the DW needs for its staff in order to issue |licenses.

MR. BANNOCK answered vyes. In response to a followup question
by Chair Weyhrauch, he stated that the DW has not been able to
identify any fiscal inpact. He said that, currently, the DW

goes through training specific to identification of docunents,
and [recogni zing both] fraudul ent and acceptabl e docunents. The

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 13, 2004



training is done through a national organization called the
Anmerican Association of Mtor Vehicle Admnistrators (AAWA).
One person from the DW is sent at |east once a year to take
trainer courses, and "a large chunk of that [training] 1is
dedicated to this particular issue.”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. Bannock if the training of the DwW
per sonnel on finding ways to prove citizenship 1is also
incorporated in his fiscal note.

MR. BANNOCK responded that he thinks it would be safe to say
that that's ongoing training. He explained that the training
is, therefore, not being reinvented.

9:04 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the DW would be naking an
i ndependent determnation of <citizenship, or whether it would
"rely on the good will and the honesty of the applicant.”

MR. BANNOCK told Representative Guenberg that his frontline
counter staff are the recipients of the DW' s direct training
regardi ng docunents; therefore, the applicant would bring proof
of said requirenents to that staff. He reveal ed that there are
ti mes when a supervisor or even the registrar may be sumoned to
make a verification.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if an "independent determ nation”
woul d be nmade, or if the DW would "rely sinply on the eyebal
exam nation of the docunent.”

MR. BANNOCK answered sonetines both. 1In response to a follow up
guestion by Representative Guenberg, he confirned that there
will not be a procedure requiring "an independent exam nation of
that fact.” He gave an exanple as foll ows:
If | brought in ny birth certificate, then ny front
counter staff would know exactly what that birth
certificate looks like, understand that it's a real

birth certificate, and i ssue based on that docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what procedures [the Dw] would
take to protect against counterfeiting.

MR. BANNOCK reiterated that the staff attends training at | east

on an annual basis on fraudul ent docunents. In response to a
guestion by Representative Guenberg as to whether there will be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 13, 2004



an appeal process, he said all actions of the DW are subject to
a hearing.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that he is examning M.
Bannock's zero fiscal note. He asked himif he has checked with
other states to find out what percentage of rejected applicants
are appeal ed and what the cost is for these states on an ongoi ng
basi s.

MR. BANNCCK answered he has not checked.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Bannock if he thought it w se
to do so before standing by a zero fiscal note.

MR. BANNOCK responded that he doesn't know how to answer that
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested through the chair that the
DW provide a witten answer to that question.

MR. BANNCCK agreed to do that.
9:10 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there is an inplicit
understanding that there are a certain nunber of people who are
now receiving driver's licenses, who would not receive them
under HB 40.

MR. BANNOCK answered that he thinks that is a fair assessnent.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ offered his wunderstanding that those
individuals would be paying license application fees, and
perhaps other fees associated with getting a license. He asked
if that is reflected in the zero fiscal note. He said it seens
to him that if fewer people are getting licenses, then there
woul d be a | oss of revenue to the state.

MR. BANNOCK answered that that is not reflected in the fisca
note. In response to a request by Representative Berkow tz that
that information be provided in the course of doing the research
requested by Representative G uenberg, he stated that it would
be very difficult to assunme with any scientific certainty what
t hat nunmber nmay or nay not be today.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ opined that there is a big difference
bet ween assigning a zero fiscal note and an indeterm nate fisca
note. He stated that there is a fiscal inpact to [HB 40].

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked M. Bannock to take a look at
[ Representative Berkowi tz' request].

9:14 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated his understanding of the
stipulations for renewal of driver's licenses, included in the
bill. He stated his concern is in regard to those people who
may not have access to a birth certificate, for exanple. He
guestioned what the inpact may be if those people do not renew
their |icenses.

MR. BANNOCK told Representative Seaton that he is 100 percent

correct; if HB 40 passes as witten, then the DW wll not
automatically renew people's driver's licenses as it has done in
the past. However, in less than 60 days [from bill passage] the

DW would begin an entirely new process of 1issuing driver's
licenses, and it would behoove the division to get people to
cone in to its station to apply for what is called the digital
driver's license, he said. Upon reissuing that digital driver's
license and upon verification that the DW has any necessary

docunents, that driver's license wll then be assigned, "Ckay to
renew. " He said, "At this very mnute, the division does not
know if | am a legal citizen or not, ... based on ny driver's
| i cense. ™ M. Bannock revealed that one of his goals in |less
than 10 full years is to get digital |icenses out on the market.
9:17 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked M. Bannock if taking nore tine
sinply to renew soneone's license and retaining information
about citizenship would inpact the zero fiscal note.

MR. BANNCCK replied that he does not think it woul d.
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "In other words, it's going to

take nore tinme, costing nore l|labor, and you're going to have
nore storage, and you're going to be able to do it for free?"

To clarify, he illustrated that it would take nore work on the
part of the DW to check for proof of citizenship, as well as to
keep the records produced for that proof. He said, "Unless the

good folks at the DW are doing their work for free, it seens to
me there's going to be a cost involved here.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 13, 2004



MR. BANNOCK subnmitted to Representative Berkowitz that nost of
what he had just described is currently being done by the DW.
For exanple, he noted that people with |icenses greater than 5
years ol d probably have a sticker on the back of those |icenses.
The people sent in $15 each, and the DW nailed the stickers to
t hem He noted that that entire process is disappearing
"regardl ess.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ indicated that there would be nore
wor K. He said, "Wen people are working they' ve got to be
charging sonething for it."

9:20 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL stated that he appreciates the line of
guestioni ng; however, he suggested that the answers bei ng sought
will come forth through the information the commttee has
al ready requested fromthe DW.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the commttee would hold HB 40
until later in the neeting.

HB 304- JACK COCHI LL BRI DGE TO THE | NTERI OR

9:22 a.m

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 304, "An Act namng the Jack Coghill Bridge to
the Interior."

REPRESENTATIVE JOHN COGHI LL, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 304, prefaced his remarks by stating his intent is

to honor his father and he neans no self-aggrandi zi ng. The
purpose of the bill, he explained, is sinply to nane the bridge
over the Nenana River at Rex the Jack Coghill Bridge to the
I nterior.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL revealed that the story behind this is
that when the Parks H ghway was being surveyed to connect
Anchorage and Fairbanks, Jack Coghill got an appropriation
through the legislature that actually preceded the noney for the
hi ghway; therefore, the bridge was actually built before the
hi ghway got to it. He said his father "took a little bit of
ri bbing" as the author to "the bridge to nowhere."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that this year his father wll be
one of the oldest menbers of the Al aska State Constitutional
Convention, he was in the territorial |egislature, and he served
as lieutenant governor. He said he knows that nam ng things for
people is generally done after they die; however, he explained
that his son, Joshua, who heard the story of the bridge from
soneone in Healy, asked himto author this piece of |egislation.
Representative Coghill nentioned spending time with his father
after his nother, Frances, died a couple of years ago, and he
said he has cone to think that [naming the bridge after his
father] is an appropriate thing to do. He said he thinks this
wi |l honor Al aska, generally, as well as those who cross that
bri dge who know his father personally.

9:24 a. m

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested that the bridge be nanmed after
Representative Coghill's father and nother.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said he would not want to do that,
because his nother already has a foundation in her nanme for
children who have speech inpedinents, which was sonething that
was "part of her heart" and probably nore appropriate. Si nce
the bridge is a legislative matter dating back to the early
1960s, he said he thinks it appropriate to nanme it after his
fat her.

9:26 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HB 304 out of commttee
with individual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fisca
not e. There being no objection, HB 304 was noved out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee.

HB 40- REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE

9:27 a.m

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the conmmittee would return to
HOUSE BILL NO 40, "An Act relating to issuance of a driver's
i cense. "

ELLEN KRSNAK, testifying on behalf of Catholic Social Services
(CSS), informed the committee that CSS operates 12 prograns,
primarily in Anchorage, but also in Kodiak, Delta Junction, and
t hroughout the state. In the last fiscal year, she noted, CSS
served over 26,000 Al askans. She stated that although sone of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- January 13, 2004



her testinmony will mrror what has already been spoken by the
commttee, it is inportant for CSS to go on record in opposition
to HB 40.

M5. KRSNAK stated that [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11
2001] brought a heightened vigilance in [the United States] and
it is wse to pay nore attention to those who would threaten the
safety of the U S She enphasized the inportance of insuring
that the response of the United States to [the terrorist attacks
of Septenber 11, 2001] and increased threats to the well being
of the country are addressed effectively and thoroughly.

M5. KRSNAK stated that people need the neans to go to work, feed
their famlies, and take their children to school or to the

doctor. \Whether soneone has a driver's license will not prevent
him or her from naking certain that these daily necessities are
nmet, she said. By refusing to license and, therefore, to

properly regulate drivers, public safety continues to be
t hr eat ened, she said.

M5. KRSNAK stated that, with all due respect to Representative
Lynn, HB 40 does nothing to achieve the goals it sets out to
achi eve. For exanple, she said it does not strengthen honel and
security. Furthernore, HB 40 wundermnes public safety, by
making certain that many drivers on the roads will not be able
to get a license or insurance. Finally, she noted, if enacted,
HB 40 woul d i nmpose a huge cost to the state at a tinme when every
dol lar is scarce.

M5. KRSNAK stated that many, if not all of the terrorists
involved in [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001] were
in the US Ilawfully at the tine of the tragedy. Therefore
they would have been able to receive an Alaska driver's |icense
if HB 40 had been enacted at the tine. Furthernore, a driver's
| icense is not necessary to board a plane, she said. M. Krsnak
also stated that HB 40 would not prevent identity theft. She
said that by providing driver's Ilicenses to all eligible
Al askans, we mnimze the use of fraudulent or forged docunents,
because we take away the need to use such docunents.

M5. KRSNAK stated that HB 40 will not prevent voter fraud; there
is already a federal statute penalizing such behavior. In
addition, she noted, it is a basis for alnpbst automatic renova
or deportation from the United States. She stated that HB 40
would threaten public safety and increases cost to insurance
conpanies and to insured notorists. Licensed drivers are tested
and insured, while wunlicensed ones are not. Nat i onal | y,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 13, 2004



uninsured notorists cost about $1.4 billion per year, and an
average of 14 percent of all accidents are caused by unlicensed
drivers. One in five drivers involved in fatal crashes are
unlicensed, she said. Ms. Krsnak stated that [CSS] feels that
HB 40 has the potential to be costly.

MS5. KRSNAK stated that because of the difficulty in reliable and
proper inplementation of such a law, particularly regarding

confusing termnology relied on in the bill, there wll
undoubtedly be litigation over its application, causing the
state precious time and dollars. Ms. Krsnak listed the
follow ng benefits to licensing all eligible Al askans: [Increase
in state revenue from increase in applications for |icenses;
i mproved public safety and safety on roads and hi ghways, because
nore drivers will be licensed, therefore insured and tested; and

reduced cost to the state and to licensed and i nsured drivers.

M5. KRSNAK stated that CSS respectfully urges the commttee to
vot e agai nst HB 40.

9:31 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a problem exists where people
arrive at shelters wi thout identification.

MS. KRSNAK noted that CSS operates three energency shelters, two
in Anchorage, and one in Kodiak. She stated that it is true
that nmany of the clients who cone to the shelters do so wth
only the clothes on their backs and w thout docunentation. She
said, "W want to help them transition out of honel essness to
i ndependent living, and we feel that this is another obstacle.”

IVB. KRSNAK, in response to a followup question by
Representative Seaton, noted that CSS does have an inmmgration
and refugee services programthat works directly with people who
are pursuing |legal residency. She indicated that someone who
cones to the shelter with just the clothes on his/her back "w |
not have that docunmentation in the event that they don't have a
driver's license, in the event that they need one to secure
enpl oynent . "

9:34 a.m
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN di sclosed that he is a practicing Catholic,
and he said he applauds CSS for its good work. Regardi ng the

people who show up with only the clothes on their backs, he
said, "Hopefully they could attain sonme kind of |egal residency

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- January 13, 2004



and at that point be able to get a driver's license." He stated
that although everyone is entitled to be |oved, he can love his
nei ghbor abundantly even though they may or may not be qualified
for a driver's |icense.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that HB 40 was heard and hel d.

HB 319- REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 319, "An Act relating to the disposal of state
|l and by lottery; and relating to the disposal, including sale or
| ease, of renote recreational cabin sites.”

9:36 a. m

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 319 on behalf of Representative Fate,
sponsor . He told the commttee that HB 319 is partly a result
of the Alaska Constitution, Article VIII, Section 1, which read
as foll ows:

SECTI ON 1. St atenent of Policy. It is the policy of
the State to encourage the settlenent of its land and
the developnment of its resources by making them
avai l abl e for maxi num use consistent with the public
i nterest.

MR. POUND noted that the State of Alaska has held on to
approximately 90 acres. He said that HB 319 relates to the
Anmerican dream of owning a piece of property. The | and being
held by the state is essentially nonproductive and is exenpt
fromlocal taxation. He opined that that land is only an asset
when it is passed on to the private sector.

MR. POUND said this renote recreational cabin site bill is
designed to nake it easier for individuals to find a perfect
| ocation for a weekend escape, or a hunting or fishing trip
hopefully near their own hones. It means that |ocal residents
will be building structures in parts of the state where no one
currently lives.

MR. POUND noted that a trickle down effect would occur, because
building materials, fuel, and renote transportation would be
pur chased. He al so noted that organized boroughs would then be
allowed to have property tax bases they currently do not have.
M. Pound concluded by saying that owning land in Alaska is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- January 13, 2004



econom c in basis, because land is forever - it is not sonething
that has to do with a "boom or bust."

9:40 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, line 5 which read as
fol | ows:

Sales under this section nay be at public or private
sal e.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he would |ike sonme explanation
whether this |anguage refers to private sales that only occur
after [land] has gone out to a public sale and is a |eftover
parcel, or whether it could refer to sales that are not
conpetitively available to all Al askans. [ Regarding the
| anguage] he added, "I'm hoping there'll be a little cleanup in
there."

MR. POUND offered his wunderstanding that, wunder the current
policy, a person can walk in after the open process is closed
and say, "Ckay, | want that little plot of land right there,”
and that can be negotiated privately, "without it going back out
to public.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recommended that the word "private" be
clarified to nean a private sale after it has been offered for
public sale.

9:44 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to [page 2, line 3] where
" 38.05. 600" shows as new text added to HB 319. He offered his
understanding that the State of Alaska retained the mneral
rights to virtually everything. He asked, "Now on these renote
parcel sales, do they pass the mneral rights away?"

MR. POUND answered no. He indicated that [that portion of
statute] was added [to the |language in the bill] to clarify that
there would not be a different set of rules.

9:46 a. m

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked M. Pound to explain his previous conment
regarding land only being an asset when it's in the private
sector. He remarked that the University [of Alaska] has |and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- January 13, 2004



that is not in the private sector, which is certainly considered
an asset.

MR. POUND noted that the land that nekes up the university and
the railroad is exenpt from |ocal taxation; therefore, there is
no tax base. He stated his belief in local taxation, and said
that, regardi ng possession of an appraised value, one finds nore
of an appraisal in a private sector piece of property than in
gover nment owned [ property].

[HB 319 was heard and hel d. ]

HIR 3-CONST. AM PERVANENT FUND

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 3, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the Al aska
per manent fund.

TAPE 04-03, SIDE A
9:49 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD, Al aska State Legislature, as Co-
sponsor, told the conmttee that he believes this is one of the
nost controversial subjects the legislature will deal wth. He
shared that the permanent fund dividend (PFD) has benefited his
famly by providing the funds for the down paynment on the house
he lives in, for his son to attend the University of Al aska
Fai rbanks, and for his daughter to attend school after she
graduates this year

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD offered his belief that the PFD program
was started for two reasons: First, to enlist the public's
support in protecting the fund itself, which has been
successful . Second, to provide benefits to the citizens of the
state, which has also been very successful. He said he sees no
reason to change the "payout." He explained that if the nethod
of payout is to be changed, it is necessary to have "buy-in" by
the citizens of the state. He told the nmenbers that he believes
the only way to get permssion [to make changes] is to take [the
i ssue] before the people for a vote. That is what HIR 3 is al
about, he said.

REPRESENTATIVE ERIC CROFT, Alaska State Legislature, as Co-
sponsor, told the conmttee that he had nothing nore to add,
because Representative Crawford had spoken eloquently on the
subj ect .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 13, 2004



9:51 a.m

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said that the public nust realize that any
anendnent to the constitution nust first pass the |egislature
and be voted on by the public; therefore, any change in the
constitutional schene dealing with the payout of the dividend
whi ch affects the constitution has to be voted on by the public.
He enphasized that the legislature, in itself, could not nmake
t hi s change. The sane is true of the percent of market value
[ POW] issue that is being debated. Any change nust be voted on
by the people, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD explained that the only thing that is
protected in the constitution right now is the principal of the
permanent fund. The payout from the earnings is only protected
by statute.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked for clarification that the intent of this
resolution is to "constitutionalize" the dividend payout.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT replied that is absolutely correct.
9:53 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the discussion of the POW
and the issue of earnings reserve is due to the fact that there
is a conflict in the way the permanent fund is nmanaged. He
explained that when the permanent fund was first created the
investnments were in bonds and it was an interest-bearing
account . There was a steady flow of interest and earnings.
After about 10 years the permanent fund nanagers changed their
basis of investing in the fund to an asset-based account,

including investing in real estate and stocks. He expl ai ned
that [an asset-based account] doesn't generate income until it
is sold.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that his problem with HIR 3 is
that it institutes the old way that no longer works with the

current way that we invest the permanent fund. He clarified
that he does not have a problem with having the dividend
secured, rather with this particular way of doing it. He asked

Representative Crawford to explain why the |egislature should
insert into the constitution an earnings formula that is no
| onger consistent with the way the funds are nanaged.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- January 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD responded that [HIR 3] would not

preclude "changing the way we deal with the fund,” but wll
"protect the way we do a payout.” He stated that he has nothing
against a POW approach as it relates to the process and "the
way rates deal with it." He indicated his concern is in regard
to "what the ... payout is after that." He stated that he
thinks there needs to be a vote of the people before it 1is
deci ded whether there will be any earnings that go to the state.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH of fered his understanding that there has to be a
vote of the people, no matter what.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD answered that that applies to a change
to the POW approach, which would be a constitutional change
He rem nded the commttee that, currently, there only has to be
a mpjority vote in the legislature to take noney out of the
earni ngs reserve. That, he said, is the issue that is being
addressed in [HIR 3].

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if it wasn't true that in the entire
hi story of the earnings reserve, the |egislature has never taken
noney out.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said that's true. However, he added

"W haven't gotten to the point where we have no noney. And
we're getting closer and <closer to that day when the
constitutional budget reserve runs out and we'll be forced by

the courts to go to the earnings reserve account."
Representative Crawford said he wants to head that day off.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked Representative Crawford to confirm that
there is nothing in [HIR 3] that addresses the noney that would
go to the governnent to run governnent progranms "when we reach
that so-called rainy day," but only addresses the payout of
di vi dends.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCRD replied that [HIR 3 deals] wth the
payout from the earnings reserve account, whether it goes to
government or to dividends.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH questi oned whether this proposal really protects
dividends if it can go to governnent as well.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD responded that [HIR 3] would protect
wher e the payout goes.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- January 13, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said, "If we stay true to your philosophic base
of ensuring that the permanent fund dividend benefits the people
who need it nost for ... nortgages, food, housing, ... and
education, wouldn't it be best to ... treat the pernmanent fund
like a true trust, and pass out the entire value of the trust to
the people to let themspend it the way they want?"

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD replied that that doesn't take into
account the generations to cone.

9:56 a. m

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested that people right now can invest that
[ money] for their own generations. He indicated that that would
vest the power of the permanent fund to the people. He asked,
if buy-in is desirable, then wouldn't that be a way to do it?

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said that that doesn't address, for
exanpl e, people who decide to cone live in Alaska in the future
and "some that may | eave that may take that wwth them"

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said, "If you trust the people, let them invest
it for their own future generations to cone."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted again that there wll be other
generations of people who travel to Al aska [and stay]. He told
the commttee that he noved to Alaska for the pipeline and
decided that Alaska was the place that he wanted to live and
raise his famly. He stated his belief that there wll be other
new Al askans who find their way to the state the way he did. He
said he does not want to "cl ose that door."

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH remarked, "Wen | and many other people canme to
Al aska, there was no PFD, and we cane to pitch a hand in, rather
than | ooking for a handout."”

9:56 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD told Chair Wyhrauch that that is a good
poi nt . He stated that he has never felt that the PFD was a
handout. He told the conmttee that he receives a snmall paynent

from ExxonMobil Corporation about 4 tines a year, because his
grandf at her owned 40 acres in south Texas that had oil and gas
on it. Nobody has ever called that a handout from ExxonMobi |
Corporation, because it 1is an inheritance. Representati ve
Crawford stated his belief that everyone can pitch a hand in to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- January 13, 2004



Al aska; the PFD is the royalty that Al askans get from the val ue
of [the state's] oil, not a handout.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD cont i nued:

Three quarters of all the oil revenues that [have]
conme into the state since we established the pernmanent
fund went to governnment; one quarter went to the
people - for direct benefit to the people. And |
don't think that I want to be responsible for taking

the people's quarter away, w thout ever giving the
people the right to speak on it.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH joked, "I just wanted to find what button |
could push that would get you ... to the heart of what you're
really after.” He told Representatives Crawford and Croft that

the commttee is not through hearing HIR 3. He stated that he
cannot predict the chances of it noving anywhere, but he would
give the co-sponsors the honor of hearing it in commttee and
listening to the public's feelings about it.

[HIR 3 was heard and hel d.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:58
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- January 13, 2004



